# **Policy and Resources Committee**

Held at Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH on Thursday 27 September 2012

## **Present**

Councillors Acomb (Chairman), Bailey, Mrs Goodrick, Ives, Knaggs, Mrs Knaggs, Maud and Woodward

By Invitation of the Chairman: Councillor P J Andrews and Councillor J S Clark

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observers: Councillors Arnold and Wainwright

## In Attendance

Simon Copley, Paul Cresswell, Peter Johnson and Clare Slater

## **Minutes**

# 69 Apologies for absence

Councillors Mrs Burr and Legard.

# 70 Minutes of the meeting held on the 21 June 2012

## **Decision**

That the minutes of the meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee held on 21 June 2012 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

## 71 Minutes of the Resources Working Party held on the 4 September 2012

## **Decision**

That the minutes of the meeting of the Resources Working Party held on 4 September 2012 be received.

# 72 Urgent Business

There was one item of urgent business, to consider the statement of accounts and the 2012 external auditor's report. The reason this was urgent was that the accounts had to be approved and completed by the 30 September in accordance with the accounting code of practice after consideration by the Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 25 September 2012.

## 73 **Declarations of Interest**

The following interests were declared:

Councillor Ives - a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest in agenda item 9 (Future Arrangements for Payment of Bills issued by the Council) as he had a business relationship with All Pay, who could be a service provider for the Council.

Councillor Arnold - a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest in agenda item 9 (Future Arrangements for Payment of Bills issued by the Council) as a library volunteer.

# PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

# 74 Delivering the Council Plan

Considered – Report of the Head of Corporate Services.

# Decision

That the report be noted.

### PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

# 75 Community Right to Challenge

Considered – Report of the Head of Corporate Services.

## **Recommendation to Council**

- 1. That the Council notes the Community Right to Challenge (CRC) provisions in the Localism Act 2011.
- 2. That the Council approves the approach set out in section 6 of the report, in particular:
- (i) To accept expressions of interest (EoI) under the CRC duty during the period from 18th February to 31st March each year.
- (ii) To specify individually for each EoI, by 30th April in the year in which it was submitted, the maximum period that it will take for the Council to notify the relevant body of its decision and to publish details of the specification; and to delegate this decision to the Chief Executive (in consultation with the Chairman of the Commissioning Board).

- (iii) For services that are not currently contracted out, the maximum period that it will take to notify the relevant body of its decision and to publish details of the specification will be individually determined but normally 30th September in the year that the EoI was submitted. For services that are currently contracted out, the maximum period will be individually determined so as to fit with the relevant commissioning cycle.
- (iv) The procurement process arising from the acceptance of any EOI will start no sooner than two months and no later than six months after acceptance.

# 76 Future Arrangements for Payment of Bills issued by the Council

Considered – Report of the Head of Corporate Services.

### **Recommendation to Council**

That Council is recommended to approve:

- (i) officers to implement barcoding of all Council invoices to enable payments to be made at any Post Office or PayPoint outlet within the district:
- (ii) following implementation of the above the area cash office service be removed; and
- (iii) the savings achieved from the implementation of the above to be considered as part of the Council's 2013/2014 budget strategy process.

## 77 Budget Strategy 2013/2014

Considered – Report of the Corporate Director (s151).

## **Recommendation to Council**

That Council is recommended to approve the following parameters for the preparation of the 2013/2014 budget:

- (i) Proposals be brought forward for a 2.5% increase in Council tax;
- (ii) Increases in fees and charges to be 3.5% 4.5% on a cost centre heading basis excluding VAT and only those charges officers recommend above or below this figure to be considered by the relevant policy committee;
- (iii) Efficiencies to be maximised;
- (iv) Options for service cuts to be provided. These proposals to be

considered by the Resources Working Party and the Policy and Resources Committee.

## 78 New Homes Bonus

Considered – Report of the Corporate Director (s151).

### **Recommendation to Council**

That Council be recommended to approve in principle that the entire allocation of £439,779 is ringfenced into a Ryedale Development Fund for spending on projects which deliver or protect employment within Ryedale. The allocation of this funding to be made by Council based on recommendations from the Policy and Resources Committee.

# 79 Maintenance of Closed Churchyards

Considered – Report of the Council Solicitor and Corporate Director (s151).

### **Recommendation to Council**

That Members recommend to Council option 2 from paragraph 6.13 of the report, to apply a Special Expense to those parishes in which the closed churchyard is located to cover in full the maintenance costs.

## 80 Exempt Information

### Decision

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item as there will be a likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as the information relates to any business or financial affairs of a company.

# 81 Applications for Hardship Relief from Non Domestic Rates

Considered – Report of the Corporate Director (s151).

## **Recommendation to Council**

That Members are recommended to award non-domestic rates hardship relief for 2012/2013 for the application referred to in this report financed from the ICE fund.

# 82 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

Considered – The Statement of Account and the Report of the External Auditors for 2012.

## Decision

That the Statement of Accounts and the Report of the External Auditors for 2012 be accepted.

There being no further items of urgent business, the meeting closed at 7.55 pm.